

## Town of Otis, Massachusetts Annual Town Meeting Minutes May 16, 2023

Selectboard: Larry Southard Chair, Gary Thomas, Therese Gould

Finance Board: Therese Gould Chair, Jill Moretz, Lynn Jablonski

Moderator: David Sarnacki

Town Administrator: Brandi Page

Town Clerk: Lyn O'Brien

Town Counsel: Jeremia Pollard

Board of Registrars: Marjorie Middleton, Emily Piacquadio, Jill Moretz

Total Registered Voters: 1294

Total Registered Voters in Attendance: 84

Meeting called to order by the Moderator at 7:00 pm in the Otis Town Hall.

The Pledge of Allegiance was said.

A moment of silence was held for those who have passed away.

Introductions were made.

The Moderator appointed Marjorie Middleton and Emily Piacquadio as counters.

The Moderator asked everyone to use the microphone and introduce yourself.

The Moderator confirmed with the Town Clerk a quorum was present.

A motion was made to dispense with the reading of the warrant and proceed to act on Article 1.

The motion was seconded.

The motion passed.

## **ARTICLE 1: Town Reports**

To receive the reports of the various Town Officers and act thereon.

A motion was made to accept Article 1.

The motion was seconded.

Article 1 passed.

## **ARTICLE 2: General Fund Operating Budget**

To see if the Town will raise and appropriate such money as may be necessary to defray the Town's expenses for this fiscal year. See appropriations list attached at end of Warrant. \$6,395,282.28

A motion was made to accept Article 2.

The motion was seconded.

Article 2 passed.

## **ARTICLE 3: Revolving Funds**

There are hereby established in the Town of Otis pursuant to the provisions of G.L. Ch. 44, 53E 1/2, the following Revolving Funds:

Plumbing/Gas Fees & Charges for Plumbing/Gas Inspections

Wire Inspector Fees & Charges for Wire Inspections
Fire Department Inspections
Sanitation Inspector Fees & Charges for Fire Inspections
Fees & Charges for Sanitation Inspections
Recreation Commission Fees & Charges for Recreation Programs

Demolition Debris Removal Fees & Charges for Transfer Station Demolition Debris Fees & Charges for Cemetery Commission Expenses

Tax Title Fees & Charges for Tax Title Expenses

Section II: Expenditures from each revolving fund set forth herein shall be subject to the limitation established by Town Meeting or any increase therein as may be authorized in accordance with G.L. Ch. 44, 53E 1/2.

Plumbing & Gas Inspector	\$15,000.00
Wire Inspector	\$15,000.00
Fire Department Inspections	\$6,000.00
Sanitation Inspector	\$9,000.00
Recreation Commission	\$5,000.00
Demolition Debris Removal	\$25,000.00
Cemetery	\$2,000.00
Tax Title	\$10,000.00

A motion was made to accept Article 3.

The motion was seconded.

Article 3 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 4: Waste Water Enterprise Fund**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate \$76,700.00 for the operation and maintenance of the municipal sewer system and to meet the appropriation, and further to provide for said appropriation transfer funds from the sewer user fees.

A motion was made to accept Article 4.

The motion was seconded.

Article 4 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 5: Debt Service**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$253,661.80 for the purpose of paying the principal and interest due in fiscal 2024 for the John Deere Grader and the KME Fire Truck, including \$63,000 due in fiscal 2023, to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 5.

The motion was seconded.

Article 5 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 6: Wind Debt Service**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$433,147.52 in fiscal 2024 for paying the principal and interest for the Wind Project Bond; funds to be transferred from the Wind Municipal Light Plant.

A motion was made to accept Article 6.

The motion was seconded.

Article 6 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 7: Broadband Debt Service**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$214,250.00 for paying the principal and interest due in fiscal 2024 on funds borrowed for the Otis Fiber Bond; funds to be transferred from the Wind Municipal Light Plant.

A motion was made to accept Article 7.

The motion was seconded.

Article 7 passed.

## **ARTICLE 8: MLP Overpayment**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$68,511.74 for paying back to the Wind Municipal Light Plant an overpayment by said amount made to the Town in FY22, and to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 8.

The motion was seconded.

Article 8 passed.

## **ARTICLE 9: Road Repair and Paving**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$520,000.00 for the purpose of repairing and paving portions of Algerie Road including costs incidental and related thereto, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 9.

The motion was seconded.

Article 9 passed.

## **ARTICLE 10: Town Ways and Bridges-CH90**

To see if the Town will vote to accept any and all funds being provided by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Transportation (Mass DOT), under provisions of Chapter 90 of the Massachusetts General Laws, to pay for such costs as allowed by appropriate legislation in connection with the maintenance, repair and construction of Town ways and bridges.

A motion was made to accept Article 10.

The motion was seconded.

Discussion: Town Clerk asked for the amount. \$177,712.24

Article 10 passed.

## **ARTICLE 11: Grant Funds**

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to apply for Federal or State grants and to expend any monies received and in anticipation of being received, as set forth by the appropriate grant application, and to follow the appropriate procedures.

A motion was made to accept Article 11.

The motion was seconded.

Article 11 passed.

## **ARTICLE 12: Opioid Funds**

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to expend any opioid settlement funds, received in FY23 upon certification of free cash upon close out of the fiscal year, and to follow the appropriate procedures set forth by the Department of Revenue.

A motion was made to accept Article 12.

The motion was seconded.

Article 12 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 13: Police Cruiser**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$100,000.00 for the purpose of purchasing a cruiser with the necessary equipment for the Police Department, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 13.

The motion was seconded.

Discussion on how much Free Cash we have. \$2,351,257.00 was certified at the close-out last year. After this meeting there will still be a balance of \$1,220,811.41.

Article 13 passed.

## **ARTICLE 14: Fire Station Paving**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$95,000.00 for the purpose of paving at the Center Fire Station, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 14.

The motion was seconded.

Article 14 passed.

## **ARTICLE 15: Dump Trailer**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$13,000.00 for the purpose of purchasing a dump trailer for the Maintenance Department, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 15.

The motion was seconded.

Article 15 passed.

## **ARTICLE 16: Alarm Upgrades**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$11,000.00 for the purpose of upgrading the alarm systems, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash. A motion was made to accept Article 16.

The motion was seconded.

Article 16 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 17: Leaf Vac**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$6,000.00 for the purpose of purchasing a leaf vac for the Maintenance Department, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 17.

The motion was seconded.

Article 17 passed.

### **ARTICLE 18: Air Compressor**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$35,000.00 for the purpose of purchasing an air compressor and related gear for the Fire Department, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 18.

The motion was seconded.

Discussion: Is the air compressor dead? Chief Phair said it is worn out and we can't get parts for it anymore. It not compatible with other towns equipment during mutual aid events. Article 18 passed.

## **ARTICLE 19: Records Management**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$24,000.00 for the purpose of incorporating town records into a management system, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 19.

The motion was seconded.

Article 19 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 20: East Otis Schoolhouse**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$100,000.00 for the purpose of continued work at the East Otis Schoolhouse, and further to provide for said appropriation, take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 20.

The motion was seconded.

Article 20 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 21: Knox Trail Account**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$4,272.05 for the purpose of continued work on the Knox Trail toward Historic Designation, and further to provide for said appropriation to take said sum from Free Cash.

A motion was made to accept Article 21.

The motion was seconded.

Article 21 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 22: Senior Exemption 17C**

To see if the Town will vote to accept Clause 17C of M.G.L. Chapter 59 Section 5. This supersedes Clause 17 and increases the asset limit from \$20,000 to \$40,000.

A motion was made to accept Article 22.

The motion was seconded.

Article 22 passed.

## **ARTICLE 23: Blind Exemption 37A**

To see if the Town will vote to accept Clause 37A of M.G.L. Chapter 59 Section 5. This supersedes Clause 37 and increases the exemption from \$437.50 to \$500.00.

A motion was made to accept Article 23.

The motion was seconded.

Article 23 passed.

## **ARTICLE 24: Senior Exemption 41C**

To see if the Town will vote to amend acceptance of Clause 41C of M.G.L. Chapter 59 Section 5

to include 1) reducing the requisite age of eligibility to any person age 65 years or older; 2) increasing either or both of the amounts contained in the first sentence of this clause, by not more than 20 per cent; 3) increasing the amounts contained in subclause (B) of said first sentence whenever they appear in said subclause from \$13,000 to not more than \$20,000 and from \$15,000 dollars to not more than \$30,000; 4) increasing the amounts contained in subclause (C) of said first sentence whenever they appear in said subclause from \$28,000 dollars to not more than \$40,000 and from \$30,000 to not more than \$55,000.

A motion was made to accept Article 24.

The motion was seconded.

Discussion: What was the age before? Town Administrator Brandi Page explained. These are senior exemptions for those eligible through the assessor's office. Before the income limit was for 70 and older, \$13,000 for single and \$15,000 married and the asset limit \$28,000 single and \$30,000 married. This will change the age to 65 or older. Part 2, the 20% will change the exempt they receive from \$500.00 to \$600.00. Income will increase for single to \$20,000 and married \$30,000, asset limit from single \$40,000 and \$55,000 married. It increases the eligibility.

Article 24 passed.

## **ARTICLE 25: Wireless Communication Bylaw**

## WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES

- **6.4.1 Purpose.** The purpose of this By-Law is to establish guidelines to the special permitting process for the siting of wireless communications facilities, towers and antennas within the town of Otis, and to:
- 1. Preserve the character and appearance of the Town while simultaneously allowing adequate Wireless Communication facilities to be developed.
- 2. Protect the scenic, historic, environmental, and natural or man-made resources of the community.
- 3. Minimize adverse impacts of wireless communication facilities and antennas on abutting properties, residential neighborhoods, traveled ways and area of historic or high scenic value.
- 4. Locate Towers and antennas, to the extent possible, to minimize negative impacts, such as but not limited to, visual blight, noise or falling objects on the general safety, welfare and quality of life of the community.
- 5. Encourage strongly, the shared use of new and existing tower sites and to minimize the overall number and height of such facilities to only what is essential.
- 6. Enhance the ability of the providers of telecommunications services to provide such services to the community quickly, effectively, and efficiently.

## **6.4.2 Definitions.** The following terms shall be as defined:

ALTERNATIVE TOWER STRUCTURE: Man-made trees, clock towers, bell steeples, light poles and similar alternative-design mounting structures that camouflage or conceal the presence of antennas or towers.

ACT: The Communications Act of 1934, as it has been amended from time to time, including the Telecommunications Act of 1996, and shall include future amendments to the Communications Act of 1934 and 1996.

ANTENNA: Any structure or device used to collect or radiate electromagnetic waves, including both directional antennas, such as panels, microwave dishes and satellite dishes and omnidirectional antennas, such as panels, microwave dishes and satellite dishes and omni- directional antennas, such as whips but not including satellite earth stations.

ANTENNA HEIGHT: The vertical distance measured from the base of the support structure at grade to the highest point of the structure. If the support structure is on a sloped grade, then the average between the highest and lowest grades shall be used in calculating the antenna height.

ANTENNA SUPPORT STRUCTURE: Any pole, telescoping mast, tower tripod, or any other structure which supports a device used in the transmitting or receiving of radio frequency energy.

BASE STATION. The primary sending and receiving site in a wireless telecommunications network.

CAMOUFLAGED ANTENNA: An antenna and support structure that is manufactured as to be modeled after and mimic a tree. The support pole would look like "bark" and the antennas would be concealed as "branches".

CHANNEL. The segment of the radiation spectrum from an Antenna which carries one signal. An Antenna may radiate on many Channels simultaneously.

COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT SHELTER. A Structure located at a Base Station designed principally to enclose equipment used in connection with Wireless Communication Facilities.

DISH ANTENNA: A dish-like antenna used to link communications sites together by wireless transmission of voice or data. Also called microwave antenna or microwave dish antenna.

DISTANCE: shall be measured on a horizontal plane.

EMF. Electromagnetic Frequency Radiation

ERP. EFFECTIVE RADIATED POWER: The product of the antenna power input and the numerically equal antenna power gain.

FAA: the Federal Aviation Administration.

FCC: the Federal Communications Commission. The Government agency responsible for regulating telecommunications in the United States.

FCC 96-326. A Report and Order which sets new national standards for emissions of Radio Frequency emissions from FCC-regulated transmitters. This Report and Order is now contained within Title 47 Regulations, Section 1, 1.137.

GROUND STRUCTURE: a wireless communications structure anchored to the ground.

GOVERNING AUTHORITY: the governing authority of the Town of Otis.

HEIGHT: the distanced measured from ground level to the highest point on the structure.

LATTICE TOWER: A guyed or self-supporting three or four sided, open, steel frame structure, used to support telecommunications equipment.

LICENSE: The rights and obligations extended by the Town to an operator to own, construct, maintain, and operate its system within the boundaries of the Town.

MONITORING. The measurement, by the use of instruments in the field, of the radiation from a Site as a whole, or from individual Wireless Communications Facilities, Towers, Antennas or Repeaters.

MONITORING PROTOCOL. The testing protocol, initially the Cobbs Protocol, which is to be used to monitor the emissions from existing and new Wireless Communications Facilities and Repeaters. The Special Permit Granting Authority (SPGA) may, as the technology changes, require the use of other testing protocols.

MONOPOLE TOWER: A communication tower consisting of a single pole, constructed without guy wires and ground anchors.

NON-RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE: Such structures as, but not limited to, buildings, grain silos, and water towers, but does not include houses, or apartments.

REPEATER: A small receiver/relay transmitter of not more than 20 watts output designed to provide service to areas which are not able to receive Adequate Coverage directly from a Base Station.

REPEATER SITE: The location within the Town of Otis used by one or more Wireless Communication Facilities Providers and upon which one or more Repeater(s) and required camouflage or screening are located.

ROOF STRUCTURE: A wireless communication structure mounted on a foot of a building or the top of a water tower.

SELF SUPPORT TOWER: A communication tower that is constructed without guy wires and ground anchors.

TOWER: Any structure that is designed and constructed primarily for the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including self-supporting, lattice towers, guy towers, or monopole towers. The term includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers, common carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, alternative towers structures, and the like.

VISUAL BLIGHT: Any change to a landscape that adversely affects visual quality.

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION BUILDING: Any building or shelter used to house equipment primarily for the installation and operation of equipment for generating and erecting electromagnetic radiation and is an accessory to a wireless communication structure.

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION DEVICE: Any antenna, appurtenance, wiring or equipment used in connection with the reception or transmission of electromagnetic radiation which is attached to a structure.

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY: Term to include wireless communication building, wireless communication device, and wireless communication structure.

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION STRUCTURE: Any structure or tower intended to support equipment used for the transmission and reception of electromagnetic radiation, including the antennas, wiring or other devices attached to or mounted on a structure.

# **6.4.3 Exemptions.** This Article specifically exempts the following Wireless Telecommunication uses:

- 1. Wireless communication facilities used exclusively for Town or State emergency services, to include Police, Fire, Ambulance and other emergency dispatch, provided that the Tower is not used or licensed for any commercial purpose.
- 2. Amateur radio towers used in accordance and in compliance with the terms of any amateur radio service license issued by the FCC and used solely for that purpose. The tower shall be removed upon loss or termination of said FCC license.
- 3. Wireless communication structures and devices used exclusively for home television and radio reception.

## 6.4.4 General Guidelines

- 1. No wireless communication facility shall be erected, constructed, or installed without a special permit from the Zoning Board of Appeals.
- 2. Only freestanding monopoles with associated antenna are allowed. Lattice style towers and similar facilities requiring three or more legs and/or guy wires for support are not allowed.
- 3. Alternative Town Structures and Camouflage Antennas shall be preferred over all other types of wireless communication structure and antennas as to minimize adverse impacts on abutting properties, residential neighborhoods, village centers, traveled ways and areas of historic or scenic value.
- 4. Wherever feasible, wireless communication devices shall be located on existing towers or other non-residential structures, minimizing proliferation of new towers.
- 5. Wireless communication buildings shall be no larger than 500 square feet and 12 feet high, shall be designed to match other accessory buildings on the site, and shall be used only for the housing of equipment related to this particular site.

## 6.4.5 Siting and Height Requirements

#### 1. Setbacks

A. The minimum distance from the base of the wireless communication structure to

- any property line or road right-of-way shall be at least 1.5 times the height of the structure to ensure adequate fall zone.
- B. The setbacks for the wireless communication building shall comply with the setback requirements for the zoning district.
- C. The wireless communication structure shall be a minimum distance of three times the height from school buildings, playgrounds, athletics fields, and abutting residences to prevent the structure from appearing to "tower" over, adversely affecting property values.
- D. No tower shall be situated within 600 feet of any residential structure.
- 2. The height shall be the minimum height necessary to accommodate anticipated and future use.
- 3. Wireless communication structures are encouraged on State or Town owned lands, provided that said lands are not subject to the provisions of Article 97 of the Amendments to the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. If facilities predating this By-Law exist on such lands, the shared use of such facilities is encouraged.
- 4. The wireless communication structure shall, when possible, be sited off ridgelines and where their visual impact is the least detrimental to the general character of the community, or valuable historic and or scenic resources.

## 6.4.6 Relation to Existing Facilities.

No new wireless communication structure shall be permitted unless the Applicant demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of the Special Permit Granting Authority that no existing wireless communication structure can accommodate the Applicant's proposed wireless communication device. Evidence submitted to demonstrate that no existing structure can accommodate the applicant's proposed device may consist of any of the following:

- 1. No existing wireless communication structures or non-residential structures are located within the geographic area required to meet the applicant's engineering requirements.
- 2. Existing wireless communication structures or non-residential structures are not of sufficient height to meet the applicant's requirements.
- 3. Existing wireless communication structures or non-residential structures do not have sufficient structural strength or cannot be brought up to appropriate strength to support the proposed wireless communication device.
- 4. The proposed wireless communication device would cause electromagnetic interference with the existing devices on the site, or the existing devices would cause interference with the proposed wireless communication device.
- 5. The fee, costs, or contractual provisions required by the owner in order to share an existing wireless communication structure or to adapt an existing structure for use are

unreasonable.

6. The applicant demonstrates that there are other limiting factors that render the use of existing structures unreasonable.

## 6.4.7 Design Requirements.

- 1. Wireless communication structures shall be designed to accommodate the maximum numbers of users as technologically possible.
- 2. There shall be no signs or advertisements, except for no trespassing signs and a required sign giving a phone number where the responsible party can be reached on a 24-hour basis.
- 3. All wireless communication devices shall be colored, molded, and/or installed to blend into the structure and/or the landscape.
- 4. The facility shall be fenced to control access to the tower structure, and accessory buildings. Fencing shall be between six (6') and eight feet (8') high. Fencing may be protective in nature, but shall not include a spun barbed wire design. A landscape buffer of evergreen shrubs or tree planting shall be provided on the outside of the fenced area. The shrub or tree planting shall mature to a minimum height to the fence height and be planted at a height of at least four feet (4').
- 5. Night lighting of the Tower shall be prohibited unless required by the FAA. If required by the FAA, a copy of the FAA permit requiring lighting shall be submitted with the application.
- 6. There shall be a minimum of one parking space for each facility to be used in connection with maintenance of the site and not to be used for the storage of vehicles or other equipment.
- 7. Existing on-site vegetation shall be preserved or replicated to the maximum extent possible.
- 8. Vegetative screening shall be used to screen the facility from abutting residential properties and roadways. Plants that fit in with the surrounding natural vegetation shall be used.
- **6.4.8 Application Process.** Application for a special permit for siting wireless communication facilities shall be filed in accordance with the rules and regulations established in the Town's By-Laws and with the Zoning Board of Appeals. In the case of a proposal for siting a new wireless communication structure, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall hold a public hearing within sixty-five days of filing of an application and shall issue a decision within ninety days following the date of the public hearing.
- A. TO SITE A NEW WIRELESS COMMUNICATION STRUCTURE, the Applicant shall submit:

- 1. Site plans and engineering plans, prepared by a professional engineer licensed to practice in Massachusetts, on 24" x 36" sheets at a scale of 1" = 40' or 1" = 200' where appropriate, on as many sheets as necessary, which show the following:
  - a. North arrow, date, scale, seal'(s) of the licensed professional(s) who prepared plans and space for reviewing licensed engineer's seal;
  - b. Name and address of landowner and name and address of abutters;
  - c. Property lines and location of permanent structures or buildings, within 600-foot radius of proposed wireless communication structure;
  - d. Existing (from a topographical survey completed within two (2) years of application submittal date by a professional surveyor licensed to practice in Massachusetts) and proposed contour lines at a maximum of 2-foot intervals and spot elevations at base of all the proposed and existing structures;
  - e. Vegetation to be removed or altered.
  - f. Plans for drainage of surface water and plans to control erosion and sedimentation both during construction and as a permanent measure;
  - g. Delineation of wetlands, if any;
  - h. Location of wireless communication structure, including supports or guy wires, if any;
  - i. Plans for anchoring and supporting the structure, including specifications of hardware and all other building material;
  - j. Plans for accessory buildings; and
  - k. Layout and details of surfacing for access road and parking;
  - 1. Amenities such as lighting, fencing, and landscaping;
  - m. Four view lines in a one to three-mile radius of the site, beginning at True North and continuing clockwise at ninety-degree intervals, plus additional view lines from any historic, scenic, or other prominent area of Town determined by the Zoning Board of Appeals;
  - n. Plans for a well or other water source, if any;
  - o. Plans for septic system, if any;
  - p. Plans for maintenance of roads necessary to access and maintain the property.

- 2. A map showing the areas covered/served by the proposed wireless communication structure and device of different signal strengths, and the interface with adjacent service areas.
- 3. A locus map at a scale 1'' = 1000' or larger if necessary, to show where in town the proposed tower is sited, which shall show streets, buildings, and landscape feature.
- 4. A description of the soil and surficial geology at the proposed site.
- 5. A narrative report written by the carrier and licensed professional engineer which shall:
  - a. Describe the justification of proposed site;
  - b. Describe the structure and the technical, economic, and other reasons for the facility design;
  - c. Describe the capacity of the structure, including the number and type of additional facilities it can accommodate;
  - d. Describe actions to be taken if electromagnetic radiation from the facility should exceed levels designated by the FCC and/or the Act;
  - e. Describe the projected future needs of the carrier, and how the proposed wireless communications facilities fit with future projections to serve the Town and adjacent towns;
  - f. Describe leasing agreement should another carrier desire to co-locate;
  - g. Describe special design features to minimize the visual impact of the proposed wireless communication facility; and
  - h. Describe other carriers' purpose should they co-locate.
- 6. Proof of approval of all other necessary permits needed for construction and operation, other than the building permit, as the special permit granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals is required before the issue of the building permit.
- 7. Written authorization or copy of contract from property owner of the proposed tower site.
- 8. After the application is submitted, and not less than 14 days or more than 21 days before the public hearing, the applicant shall arrange to fly a four-foot-diameter balloon at the site of the proposed wireless communication structure at the maximum height of the proposed installation, to photograph from various locations the balloon and then superimpose a tower at that height for visualization purposes. The date and location of the flight shall be advertised at least 14 days, but not more than 21 days before the flights, and again in the public hearing advertisement in a newspaper with a general circulation in the town.
- B. TO SITE A WIRELESS COMMUNICATION DEVICE ON EXISTING WIRELESS COMMUNICATION STRUCTURES OR NON-RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES, such

- as buildings, grain silos, steeples, water towers or other non-residential structures, including co- location with another carrier, provided that the new use does not add to the height of the structure, the Applicant shall submit:
- 1. Site plans and engineering plans, prepared by a professional engineer licensed to practice in Massachusetts, on 24" x 36" sheets at a scale of 1" =40' or 1"=200' on as many sheets as necessary which shows the following:
  - a. North arrow, date, scale, the seal of the licensed professionals who prepared the plans and a space for the reviewing licensed engineer's seal;
  - b. Plans for supporting and attaching the device including specifications of hardware and all other building material;
  - c. Building plans for accessory buildings, if any;
  - d. Layout and details of surfacing for access road and parking, if it is to be altered form existing condition.
- 2. A map showing the areas covered by proposed device(s) of different signal strengths and the interference with adjacent service areas.
- 3. A locus map atascale1"=1000' or larger, if necessary, to show where in town the proposed device is sited, which shall show streets, buildings, and landscape features.
- 4. A narrative report written by the carrier and licensed professional engineer which shall:
  - a. Include a copy of the contract between the structure / building owner (whichever appropriate) and the Applicant;
  - b. Demonstrate that the wireless communication structure or non-residential structure to which the device will be mounted has the structural integrity to support such device;
  - c. Describe actions to be taken if electromagnetic radiation from the facility should exceed levels designated by the FCC and/or Act;
  - d. Describe the projected future needs of the carrier, and how the proposed facility fits with future projections.
- 5. Proof of approval of all other necessary permits needed for construction and operation, other than the building permit, as the special permit granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals is required before the issue of the building permit.
- 6. If the proposed facility adds more than five feet to the height of the structure at the effective date of this By-Law, the Zoning Board of Appeals may require a balloon test as described above.
- **6.4.9 Inventory of Existing Sites.** Each applicant shall provide to the Zoning Board of Appeals an inventory of its existing tower facilities that are either within the jurisdiction of the governing authority or within one mile of the border thereof, including specifying

information about the location, height and design of each tower facility. The Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals may share such information with other applicants applying for administrative approvals or special permits under this By-Law or other organizations seeking to locate facilities within the jurisdiction of the governing authority, provided however, that the Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals are not, by sharing such information, in any way representing or warranting that such sites are available or suitable.

- **6.4.10 Review by Other Boards.** The above information shall be submitted along with the regular application form to the following: 1 copy to the Building Inspector, 1 copy to the Fire Chief, 2 copies to the Planning Board, and 5 copies to the Zoning Board.
- **6.4.11 Third Party Review.** In certain instances, there may be need for expert review by a third party of the technical data submitted by an applicant. The Zoning Board of Appeals or Governing Authority may require such technical, to be paid for by the applicant as set forth in G.L. c. 4, s. 53G. Review is intended to report on technical aspects of the proposed location but not to provide a subjective review of the site requested. Review will address accuracy, completeness, applicability, and validity of the data submitted.
- **6.4.12 Approval.** In granting a special permit for wireless communication facilities, in addition to the findings—required by the Town's Zoning By-Law for Special Permits, the Special Permit Granting Authority and the Zoning Board of Appeals shall determine:
  - 1. That the Applicant has demonstrated to its satisfaction that the requirements of this By- Law have been met.
  - 2. That the size and height of the structure is the minimum necessary.
  - 3. That the proposed wireless communication facilities will not adversely impact historic structures or scenic views.
  - 4. That there are no feasible alternatives to the location of the proposed wireless communication facilities, including co-location that would minimize their impact, and the applicant has exercised good faith in permitting future co-location of facilities at the site.
- **6.4.13 Modification.** Any extension, or construction of new or replacement towers shall be subject to an amendment to the Special Permit, following the same procedure as siting a new wireless communication device on an existing structure.

## Modifications include:

- Any increase or proposed increase in dimensions of an existing and permitted Tower or other structure designed to support Wireless Communications Facilities transmission, receiving and/or relaying antennas or and/or equipment.
- **6.4.14 Review.** Any special permit for wireless communications facilities will be reviewed every five (5) years. If after review, all conditions regulating said permit are in

compliance, then the Special Permit will be renewed for an additional five (5) years.

#### 6.4.15 Conditions of Use

- 1. The applicant shall post an initial bond or other security to cover construction costs and an annual maintenance bond to cover maintenance for the access road, site, and structure(s) and to cover the removal of facility in the event of non-operation in an amount approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals. An access road may include existing town roads not designed for heavy traffic.
- 2. Regulatory Compliance: All towers, antennas and transmitters must meet or exceed current standards and regulations of the FAA, the FCC, the Environmental Protection Agency, the American National Standards Institute, the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, the National Council on Radiation protection and Measurements, and any other agency of the federal government with the authority to regulate towers, antennas, and transmitters.
- 3. Inspections will be conducted at least every 24 months, or earlier if a more stringent compliance schedule is mandated by another agency, to assure continuing compliance. The tower shall be inspected by an expert-structural engineer who is regularly involved in the maintenance, inspection and/or erection of communication towers, demonstrating structural integrity and continuing compliance with current standards. At a minimum, this inspection shall be conducted in accordance with the tower inspection check list provided in the Electronics Industries Association (EIA) Standard 222, "Structural Standard for Steel Antenna Towers and Antenna Support Structures".
- 4 Transmitters shall be inspected by an expert engineer who is regularly involved in the maintenance and inspection of such facilities. An engineer's certification that levels of electromagnetic radiation (EMR), radio frequency (RF) emissions, to be generated by the facilities on the site, including the effective radiated power (ERP) of the antenna, shall be within the maximum permissible exposure (MPE) limits for the electric and magnetic field strength and power flux density for transmitters and facilities within the guidelines established by the FCC and as required by Section 704 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and its amendments. An antenna radiation pattern shall be included for each antenna, along with directional data concerning the pointing of any directive antennas.
- 5 A copy of such inspection records shall be filed with the Building Inspector and the Planning Board by the Special Permit Holder, and may be reviewed by a licensed professional engineer hired by the town and paid for by the Special Permit Holder.
- 6 If the FCC, the FAA or other agency regulations are changed, the owner or operator shall bring the facilities into compliance within six months or earlier if a more stringent compliance schedule is included in the regulation.

7 Failure to comply with any regulations shall be grounds for removal of non-complying structures, buildings, devices at the owner's expense.

## 6.4.16 Removal and Repair

- 1. An applicant must execute a covenant with the Zoning board of Appeals agreeing to remove, within 90 days of notice from the town, the wireless communication facility not in operation.
- 2. If the facility is not removed within 90 days, the Town will remove said facility at the owner's expense.
- 3. In the event of major damage, repair must begin within 30 days of damage. Major damage shall mean damage to the facility caused by no fault of the owner operator
  - 4. If the device is lowered on the tower as the customer base increases and the top of the tower is no longer needed, then the non-operational part of the tower shall be taken down within 120 days.

#### **6.4.17 Fee Structure**

- 1. An application fee of \$300.00 (used for legal publishing and notification requirements). The Special Permit Granting authority retains the right to adjust application fees as needed.
- 2. Any additional fees as needed pertaining to special consultants specific to the Governing Authority or Zoning Board of Appeals need in reviewing information provided by the applicant

## 6.4.18 Accommodation of Emergency Communications

- 1. Space for local, regional, state or federal communications equipment to be placed on the structure to provide emergency communications shall be provided at no cost to the emergency communications authority, in a manner that will provide effective radio or other types of communication, if the location of the structure meets the needs of the emergency authority. There must also be adequate space reserved in the wireless communication building to allow for the necessary equipment to serve these antennae(s). This requirement survives the life of the structure and any change in ownership or carrier. It shall be the responsibility of the Board of Selectmen to facilitate communication between Emergency Services and the Applicant.
- 2. An applicant who seeks to site a wireless communications facility on a new structure must present to the Select Board and Emergency Services, separate from the Special Permit application, a plan which shows the proposed location,

tower height and site plan to begin a process to study the site for emergency communications.

A motion was made to pass over and bury the article.

No second was received.

A motion was made to pass over the reading of Article 25 and move it to the floor.

The motion was seconded.

The motion to pass over the reading passed.

Discussion. Larry Gould provided a point of information that the Bylaw has been updated for emergency communications access for local, state, and federal at no charge.

Who approves this? Only a special permit of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Article 25 passed declared by moderator.

#### ARTICLE 26: Land Gift for St. Paul's

To see if the Town will accept a gift of land, namely, approximately 8,029 square feet, more or less, from James Sienna and Katia Santibanez, as depicted in an Approval Not Required Plan prepared by Taconic Land Consultants, dated July 13, 2022 and endorsed on August 15, 2022, which is available at the Town Clerk's office for review.

A motion was made to accept Article 26.

The motion was seconded.

Discussion: Where is this? It is a small piece of land that increases the property in the back at Saint Paul's. The article is contingent upon the release of the bank.

Article 26 passed.

#### **ARTICLE 27: Citizen Petition**

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$30,000.00 to engage a consultant experienced in small town planning and development to review and update the 2016 Town of Otis Master Plan (as amended) to include evaluation of all Town owned buildings and grounds for the best and highest use including promoting economic development and protection of natural and cultural resources with recommendations for their future use and development, and to provide for said appropriation, transfer from available funds.

A motion was made to accept Article 27.

The motion was seconded.

Discussion: What is it for? Diane Provenz petitioner explained it is to engage a professional consultant to analyze each building to give us a good design and improve on the master plan. It will help with grant applications.

A voter asked if there was a budget request and felt \$30,000 is not enough.

A voter stated the master plan is overseen by the Planning Board and the planning board should be the committee to move this forward not a citizen's petition.

Another voter said \$30,000 has hired Berkshire Regional Planning Commission (BRPC) in the past. They also explained grants can get bounced out if the master plan is over 5 years old. The voter supported the funds going to the planning board to update the master plan and focus on the use of buildings.

Where did the \$30,000 figure come from? Diane responded it is an estimate from BRPC . A motion was made to call the motion.

No second.

A motion was made to amend the Article 27: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of \$30,000.00 to engage a consultant experienced in small town planning and development to

review and update the 2016 Town of Otis Master Plan (as amended) to include evaluation of all Town owned buildings and grounds for the best and highest use including promoting economic development and protection of natural and cultural resources with recommendations for their future use and development, and to provide for said appropriation, transfer from Free Cash.

The motion was seconded.

The motion to amend Article 27 passed.

A motion was made to table Article 27.

The motion was seconded.

A count was completed. In favor to table 42, against tabling 24. A 2/3rds vote was required and the motion to table failed.

Back to the main motion as amended.

No other discussion.

A count was completed 27 Yes, 44 No.

Article 27 failed.

A motion was made to dissolve the meeting. The motion was seconded. The meeting adjourned at 8:00 pm.

Respectfully submitted, Lyn OBrien, Town Clerk

Account number	Description	Done		Payroll	Δn	proved Amount	
	•		Φ.	•			
122	Board of Selectmen	X	\$	17,500.00	\$	21,865.00	
123	Town Administrator		\$	138,389.88		141,889.88	
131	Finance	X	\$	1,700.00	\$	2,040.00	
132	Reserve Fund	X		22.25.22	\$	13,000.00	
135	Accountant	X	\$	23,056.00	\$	24,656.00	
136	Audit	X			\$	18,000.00	
141	Assessors	X	\$	37,550.00	\$	97,250.00	
145	Treasurer	X	\$	29,168.16	\$	38,668.16	
146	Town Collector	X	\$	53,060.32	\$	73,960.32	
150	Office Supplies	X			\$	9,500.00	
151	Legal	X			\$	36,500.00	
155	Technology	Х			\$	63,400.00	
161	Town Clerk	Х	\$	53,089.18	\$	57,739.18	
162	Elections	Х	\$	8,500.00	\$	17,120.00	
171	Conservation	Х	\$	13,800.00	\$	16,400.00	
175	Planning Board	Х	\$	5,000.00	\$	7,800.00	
176	Zoning Board	Х	\$	4,000.00	\$	7,000.00	
190	Safety	Х	\$	6,000.00	\$	9,500.00	
192	Town Hall	Х			\$	15,038.00	
195	Town Report	Х			\$	2,500.00	
210	Police	Х	\$	346,432.95	\$	370,412.95	
215	Emergency Services	Х			\$	262,000.00	
220	Fire	Х	\$	17,500.00	\$	75,450.00	
241	Building Inspector	Х	\$	73,735.12	\$	75,425.12	
291	Emergency	Х			\$	30,635.23	
292	Animal Control	Х	\$	6,000.00	\$	7,200.00	
294	Tree Warden	Х	\$	500.00	\$	500.00	
300	Schools				\$	2,505,060.00	
422	Highway	Х	\$	222,209.37	\$	492,205.37	
423	Snow & Ice	Х	\$	88,500.00	\$	202,500.00	
425	Gas & Diesel	Х			\$	51,700.00	
429	Maintenance	Х	\$	278,953.67	\$	468,478.67	
433	Health & Sanitation	Х	\$	113,661.16	\$	313,266.04	
440	WWTP	Х	\$	21,500.00			\$ 76,700.00
491	Cemetery	Х	\$	1,000.00	\$	11,700.00	
520	Community Health	Х			\$	1,000.00	
522	Visiting Nurse	Х			\$	6,000.00	
523	Construct	Х			\$	800.00	
541	Council on Aging	Х			\$	32,510.00	
543	Veterans	X			\$	52,441.28	
610	Library	X			\$	73,767.00	
630	Recreation	X			\$	11,675.00	
691	Historical	X			\$	11,000.00	
692	Celebrations	X			\$	9,500.00	
699	Cultural Council	X			\$	5,000.00	
820	Berkshire Regional Plan	X			\$	1,391.08	
911	Berkshire County Retirement	X			\$	227,341.00	
912	Unemployment	X			\$	10,000.00	
914	Health Insurance	X			\$	283,397.00	
916	Medicare	X			\$	18,000.00	
945	Insurance	X			\$	111,100.00	
0.10			\$	1,560,805.81	\$	6,395,282.28	\$ 6,471,982.28